

PARISH OF CAHERCONLISH – BARONY OF CLANWILLIAM

PARISH OF CAHERCONLISH

INDEX

	Pag e
Caherconlish Ph.	1
Townlands, &c.	
Anglode	2
Ballyadam Ballyart Ballyvorneen House	8 4 6 50
Baskethill Bohernacally Bohernaglogh Boskill	7 44 44 5
Lodge House Brittas Castle	48-52 46 3 51
Caherconlish Church House Village	11 52 47 59
Carrigarreely	10
Castle-Erkin Clashbane	5 5 9 1 2
Downey's Cross	53
Eyone House	62
Garryduff Gortbrien Gorteennaskagh Gragane Grange E. Greenane	18 22 16 17 14 15
Greenane & Templemichael, Glebe of	21
Highpark House Hundred Acres E W.	43 45 23

INDEX (contd.)

	Page
Killavoher Killinure (Hill) Kilmurry Chapel Nat. School King William's Road Knockanea Knockatancashlane Knockeen Hill Knockroe Wilson	56 26 62 27 53 58 44 29 28 25 62 30
Lisnagroagh Lombardstown •• House	45 31 47
Massy Park (vid. Caher- conlish House) Hoigh	47 32
Parkanore Parkaphrince Pouleyne Pust N. Pust S. Pust N. No. 1. Glebe of Pust N. No. 2. Glebe of	63 63 60 34 35 20
Raheenrow	56
Sandy Lane Skahard Srahane E.	39 38 36 37
Templemichael	41
Tobermalug Ruins	54 40
Toberart Tobermearoge	57 61 60
Woodfarm	42

PARISH OF CAHERCONLISH

Caherconlish Ph.

-- Boundary Surveyor

1

Cathair-Chinn-Lis, the stone fort at the head of the lios or earthen fort. Annals of Innisfallen.

(A stone fort must have been erected near an older earthen one.)

Caherconlish

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

Cahirconlish

-- Rev. Matthew Moore

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826 -- Presentments Book 1824

-- Mr. Geo. Peacocke, High Constable

-- Barony Map

Cahirkenlish Carkinlish -- Down Syrvey
-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated about 5 miles S.E. of the City of Limerick. Bounded on the N. by the ph. of Abbington; E. by the phs. of Grean, Drumkeen and Abbington; S. by Ballybrood ph.; and W. by the phs. of Ludden and Inch St. Lawrence. Contains 8.172 statute acres.

This parish is about 4 miles long and 3 miles broad. It is very level and without much bog or wood. It is suitably accommodated with roads, the principal of which are: one leading E. by W. through its north end from Limerick to Tipperary, and one in the same direction through its south part from Croom, etc., through the village of Caherconlish to Pallis Grean.

Townlands &c.

<u>Anglaud</u>

-- B. S.

. 2

Angloid, meaning uncertain. J. O'D.

Anglode

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. M. Moore

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Carrigparson td.; on the E. by Highpark td.; and on the S. and W. by the ph. of Ludden. Contains 62 acres, which are arable with some limestone, and produce potatoes, corn, wheat and flax.

The proprietor Joseph Gabbett, Esq. has it let at will to 6 tenants in farms of 35 to $2\frac{1}{2}$ acres at £2 15s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.5d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 2s. to 9d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Brittas

-- B. S.

3

Briotas. The meaning of this word is uncertain. It
may mean "Speckled Land", from the Gaelic
brit = speckled; but it is more likely from
the Norman-French word Bretsche, meaning
a stockaded fort-dwelling, such as were thrown
up in every conquered district by the early
Anglo-Norman invaders.

Brittes

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Revd. M. Moore

-- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by the ph. of Abbington; the W. by Gorteennaskagh td.; on the S. by Ballyart td.; and on the E. by Abbington ph. Contains 274 acres, arable, without limestone.

The soil is light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Cloncurry has it let per his agent William Lewis, Esq. to 6 tenants at will in farms of from 60 to 5 acres at £1 10s. to £1 4s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s. 2d. to 1s.5d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Ballyart

-- B. S.

4

Baile Airt, Art's town. J. O'D.

Ballyart

Bally Art

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. 1824

-- Revd. M. Moore

-- Barony Map

-- Presentments Book

-- Down Survey

Balliartt -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Ballyart -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. and W. by Grange tds.; S. by the tds. of Kilmurry and Castle-Erkin; and E. by the ph. of Abbington. Contains 320 acres, arable and without limestone.

Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Edward B. Hartopp, Esq. has it let at will per his agent David Roche, Esq. to 12 tenants at £1 to 15s. per acre in farms of from 40 to 2 acres. County Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.5d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Boskill

-- B. S.

5

Bos-Cill, meaning uncertain.

Boskill

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Down Survey

Boskell Boskhill -- Acts of Settlement &c.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. M. Moore

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Templemichael td.; on the E. by Garryduff & Gorthrien tds.; and on the S. and W. by Gragane td. Contains 280 acres. Arable and without limestone.

The soil is partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Captain Ben Freind has it let at will to 2 tenants at £2 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.5d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly, and Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Ballyvourneen

-- B. S.

6

Baile Mhóirnin. Moirnin's town. J. O'D.

Ballyvorneen

-- J. O'D.

Ballyvourneen

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. M. Moore

Ballyvournane

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey

Ballyvoneene

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Ballyvonine Ballivornine

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Gortbrientd.; E. by Clashbane td.; S. by Ballybrood ph.; and W. by Gragane td. Contains 338 acres, of which about 20 are bog and rough ground, the remainder arable with limestone.

The soil is light, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietors Thomas and William Gabbett, Esqrs. have it let to 5 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly, and Tithe 2s. per acre. The above tenants have it let again to 12 others at will and in farms of $\frac{3}{4}$ to $1\frac{1}{2}$ acres at £6 per acre, Co. Cess and Tithe included. A part remains in the proprietors' occupation.

Baskethill

-- B. S.

7

Cnoc Cise, hill of the kish. J. O'D.

Baskethill

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. M. Moore ...

-- Barony Map

Baskethill (contd.)

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Clashbane td.; E. by Ardroe td. and the ph. of Aglishcormick; and on the S. and W. by Ballybrood ph. Contains 226 acres, arable and without limestone.

Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn, and flax. The proprietor Colonel Maunsell has it let to Dean Freeman, Esq. at 3s.6d. per acre, and he again has it let to Capt. Gabbett at 7s.6d. per acre. The Captain has it let to 7 tenants by leases of one life at £2 to £2 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Ballyadam

-- B. S.

8

Baile Adaimh, Adam's town.

Ballyadam

- -- J. O'D.
- -- Inhabitants
- -- Revd. M. Moore
- -- Sur. & Val. Report 1824
- -- Geo. Peacocke, High Constable
- -- Barony Map
- -- Tithe Compn. Book

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Is bounded on the N. by Kilmurry td.; E. by Moy td.; S. by Ballyvorneen and Clashbane tds.; and W. by Lombardstown td. Contains 198 acres. Arable and with limestone.

Soil partly light and wet, producing potatoes, dorn and flax. The proprietor Revd. Richard Wolfe has it let to 13 tenants by leases of 1 life at £1 14s. to £1 18s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Castle Erkin

-- B. S.

9

Caisléan Eircin, Erkyn's Castle. (Was previously called Wilkin's Castle). J. O'D.

Castle Erkin

- -- J. O'D
- -- Survey & Val. Report 1824
- -- Barony Map
- Geo. Peacocke, High Con.
- Castleeurkin -- Down Survey
- Castle Urkin -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Ballyart td.; E. by Dromkeen ph.; S. by Moy td.; and W. by Kilmurry td. Contains 311 acres. Arable.

Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. Lime is brought from Ballyadam and used for manure. The proprietor

Castle Erkin (contd.)

Revd. R. Wolfe has it let per his agent Thomas Dizney to 14 tenants by leases of 1 life at £1 10s. per acre in farms of from 30 to 2 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.5d. per acre ½ yearly, and tithe 1s.6d. to 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Name - Ryan.

Carigoreely

-- B. S.

10

Carraig Fhearghail, Farrell's rock. J. O'D.

Carrigarreely

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Composition Book 1826

-- Revd. M. Moore, Incumbent

Carrickerila

-- Presentments Book 1834
-- Geo. Peacocke, High Con.

-- Down Survey

Carrickerilly Carriggirylly

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Tobermalug td.; E. by Knockatancashlane td; S. by the td. of Pust North; and W. by Hundred Acres td. Contains 315 acres. Arable, with limestone.

The soil is partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor John Kelly, Esq. has it let to Robert Maunsell, Esq., and he again to 11 tenants by lease of 1 life at £3 to £2 per acre in farms of from 40 to 9 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.6d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. to 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Caherconlish

-- B. S.

11

For derivation of name see under Caherconlish Ph.

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Hundred Acres E. td.; E. by Boskill td.; S. by the tds. of Gragane and Knockroe Wilson; and W. by Pust S. td. Contains 209 acres. Arable, with some limestone.

The soil is partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat. The proprietor Captain Thomas M. Wilson has part of it in his own occupation, and the remainder let by leases of 21 years to 22 tenants at £3 to £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Names - Murnane and Ryan.

Clashbawn

-- B. S.

12

Clais Bhan, the white furrow or trench. J. O'D.

Clashbane

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1836

-- Revd. M. Moore, Incumbent

Clashbawn -- Barony Map

In the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Ballyadam td.; M. by Dromkeen ph.; S. by Baskethill td.; and W. by Ballyvorneen td. Contains 211 acres statute measure. Arable, with limestone.

The soil is light and gravelly, producing potatoes, wheat and flax. The proprietors Joseph D. Freeman, Esq. and Captain Gabbett have it let to 7 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 10s. to £3 per acre in farms of from 42 to 3 acres. Co. Cess generally from 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre by yearly, and Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Greenaun

-- B. S.

13

Grianán, a sunny spot, a solarium. J. O'D.

Greenane

-- J. C'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Revd. M. Moore

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Grenane Grenaneoughtragh & Grenaneightragh

-- Down Survey

Grenansboth

-- Down Survey Map

Grenane Ightragh with) a castle and Grenane)

Voughtragh, the castle, town and lands

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

of.

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Grenanes, als. Grenaneotragh and Grenaneightragh

In the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Templemichael td.; E. by Lombardstown td.; S. by Gortbrien td.; and W. by Garryduff td. Contains 233 acres, of which about 20 acres are bog and rough ground, the rest arable, without limestone. Produces potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor. William Gabbett has it let per his agent Henry Lane, Esq. to 13 tenants by leases of 1 life and 21 years at £3 to £3 15s. per acre. in farms of from 40 to 1 acres. Co. Cess generally from 1s.2d. to 1s.6d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s.14d. per ac. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Grange East

-- B. S.

14

Gráinseach, a Grange.

J. 0'D.

Grange East

-- O'D.

Grange

-- Geo. Peacocke

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

Grange Lower

-- Acts of Settlement

-- Acts of Settlement -- Tithe Compn. Book 1834

-- Revd. M. Moore, Incumbent

In the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Gorteennaskagh td.; E. and S. by Ballyart td.; and W. by Knockeen td. Contains 200 acres, st. measure. Arable, with some limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Lord Carberry has it let at will per his agent James F. Evans, Esq. in farms of from 20 to 1½ acres at £2 5s. per acre to 6 tenants. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Grange West

-- B. S.

15

For name see above, p. 14.

In the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Killinure td.; E. by the td. of Grange E.; S. by Knockeen td.; and W. by Knockenea td. Contains 157 acres, which are cultivated. Soil partly light and gravelly, with lime stone, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax. The proprietor Hugh N. Massy has it let to the widow of Mr. James Barry by a lease for ever, and she again to one tenant by a lease of 3 lives at £2 10s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Gurteenaskagh

-- B. S.

16

Guirtin na Sgeach, little field of the briars. J. O'D.

Gorteennaskagh Gurteeniskaugh

Gurtenaskagh

Gurteenaskagh

Gurteenaskagh

Gurteenineskeagh Gurteeneskeagh Gurteenskeagh -- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Presentments Book 1834

-- Geo. Peacocke, High Constable

-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Barony Map.

-- Down Survey
-- Down Survey Map

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

In the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by the ph. of Abbington; E. by Brittas td.; S. by the td. of Grange East; and W. by Killinure td. Contains 296 acres.

Gurteenaskagh (contd.)

Arable, with some limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, cats, corn and flax. The proprietor Lord Carberry has it let to 14 tenants in farms of from 50 to 4 acres at £2 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scrace. The Prevailing Name is Ryan.

<u>Graggaun</u>

-- B. S.

17

Gráingeán, the diminutive of Graig, a hamlet.

Gragane

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

Gregaun

-- Barony Map

In the S.W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Caherconlish td.; E. by Boskill td.; S. by Ballybrood ph.; and W. by the td. of Knockroe Wilson. Contains 372 acres. About 20 acres of bog and rough ground, the rest arable without limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat.

The proprietor Captain Thomas M. Wilson has it let to 3 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 to £1 12s. per acre; and they again to 13 others by leases of 21 years in farms of from 29 to 1½ acres at £2 15s. to £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Garryduff

-- B. S.

18

Garraidh Dubh, black garden.

Garryduff

-- J. O'D.

- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Inhabitants

-- Revd. M. Moore

In the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Boskill td.; E. by Greenane td.; S. by Gortbrien td; & W. by Boskill td. Contains 60 acres, of which about are bog and rough ground; the remainder arable, without limestone.

The proprietor Joseph Walplate, Esq. has it let to one tenant by a lease for ever at £7 10s. gross. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre.

Glebe of Pust Horth No. 2. - B. S.

19

Post is not an Irish name. J. O'D.

In the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. and W. by Pust North td.; S. by Pust S. td.; and E. by

Glebe of Pust North No. 2 (contd.)

Caherconlish td. This Glebe contains 4 acres, which are arable, without limestone. The proprietor Revd. M. Moore has it let to Mr. Ralph H. Cox, and he again to 1 tenant at £2 5s. per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly.

Glebe of Fust North No. 1 -- B. S.

20

In the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. E. and S. by Pust North td.; and on the W. by Skahard td. Contains 14 acres. Arable. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Revd. Matthew Moore has it in his own occupation. The Glebe House, which is 3 story high, was built sometime prior to 1789 by the Revd. Mr. Galway.

Glebe of Greenaan and Templemichael -- B. S.

21

Grianan. See page 13.

Teampall Michil, church of St. Michael.

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Contains 3 acres, arable, without limestone. Produces potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Revd. M. Moore has it let at will to 1 tenant at the gross rent of £5 10s. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre, paid until 1834. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Gurtbrine

-- B. S.

22

Gort Briain, Brian's garden or field.

Gortbrien Gortbrian

-- J. C'D.

Gurthbrien

-- Barony Map
-- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Revd. M. Moore

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Greenane td.; E. by Lombardstown td.; S. by Bally-vorneen td.; and W. by the td. of Boskill. Contains 85 acres, of which about 3 is bog and rough ground; the rest is arable, without limestone.

The soil is partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Captain Gabbett has it let to 1 tenant who has part of it in his own occupation, and has the remainder let at will to 9 tenants at the total rent of £19, Co. Cess and Tithe included. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Hundred Acres East

23

Hundred Acres East (contd.)

Hundred Acres East

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. M. Moore

-- Barony Map

-- Presentments Book

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Knockatancashlane td.; E. by Knockanea td.; S. by Caherconlish td.; and W. by Pust North td. Contains 161 acres. Arable, with some limestone. The Proprietor John Kelly Esq. has it let to Ben Friend, Esq. at £1 16s. per acre, and he again to 5 tenants by leases of 21 years at £3 6s. 9d. per acre in farms of from 30 to 2 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre & yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre is included in the rent. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Hundred Acres West

-- B. S.

24

Situated in the W. of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Abington ph.; E. by Carrigarreely & Tobermalug tds.; S. by Skahard td.; and W. by Highpark td. Contains 164 acres. Arable, with some limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat.

The proprietor John Dwyer, Esq. has it let to the widow of Mr. James Barry by a lease of 99 years at £1 10s. per acre, and she again to Mr. Arthur Glaster by a lease expiring in 1845 at £3 per acre. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre & yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

<u>Knockeen</u>

-- B. S.

25

Cnoc Caoin, the fine or pleasant hill. J. O'D.

Knockeen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. H. Moore

Geo. Peacocke, High Con.

-- Barony Map

In the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Killinure td.; F. by the td. of Grange East; S. by Templemichael td.; and W. by Knockanea td. Contains 107 acres. Arable, with some limestone. Soil is partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor John Tuttle, Esq. has it let to 2 tenants by leases of 1 life at £3 to £2 10s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. The 2 tenants have it relet in conacre at £12 per acre, Co. Cess and Tithe included. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Killanure

-- B. S.

26

Cill an Iubhair. church of the yew.

Killinure

Killanure.

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Barony Map

-- Acts of Settlement &c. -- Tithe Compn. Book 1826

-- Revd. M. Moore

In the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Abington Parish; E. by Gorteennaskagh td.; S. by the td. of Grange West; and W. by Sandy Lane td. Contains 343 acres. Arable, with some limestone. Soil partly light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax. The proprietor Thomas Daunt, Esq. has it let to 6 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 12s. per acre in farms of 50 to 100 acres. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre 1 yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Killmurry

-- B. S.

27

Cill Mhuire. Church of the Virgin Mary. J. O'D.

Kilmurry

-- O'D.

Killmurry

-- Inhabitants -- Barony Map

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the centre of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Ballyart td.: E. by Knockanea td.: S. by Ballyadam td.: and W. by Carrigarreely tf. Contains 222 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes. corn and flax.

The proprietor the Revd. Richard Wolfe has it let per his agent Thomas Dizney, Esq. to 6 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 8s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. to 1s.6d. per acre. Prevailing Name - Hicky.

Knockatinna East

-- B. S.

28

Cnoc a' tSean-Chaisleáin, hill of the old castle. O'D.

Knockatancashlane

-- J. O'D.

Knockatanniskislane

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

Knockatanna

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. M. Moore

Knockatanakislane -- Presentments Book

-- Geo. Peacocke, High Constable

Knockatancushlane Knockanakastlane

-- Barony Map -- Down Survey Map

Knockanegaslane

-- Acts of Settlement etc. Cnocketenechisslane -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Knockatinna East (contd.)

Situated in the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Tobermalug td.; E. by Knockanea td.; S. by the td. of Hundred Acres; and W. by Carrigarreely td. Contains 267 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, wheat and flax.

The proprietor Thomas S. White, Esq. has it let to 4 tenants by leases of 99 years at £2 10s. per acre. Co. Cess from 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. The four tenants have it let in conacre to others at £12 per acre, Co. Cess and Tithe included. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Knockanea

-- B. S.

20

Knockanea

-- J. O'D.

Knockanegh

-- Inhabitants
-- Tithe Composution Book 1826

-- Revd. M. Moore

Knockaneh Cnockneagh -- Barony Map
-- Down Survey

Cnockaneagh Knockeneagh

-- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Cnoc an Fhiaidh, hill of the stag. J. O'D.

Situated in the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Sandy Lane td.; E. by the td. of Grange West; S. by Templemichael td.; and W. by Knockatancashlane td. Contains 343 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Captain Ben Friend has it let to 4 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 15s. per acre in farms of from 72 to 31 acres. Co. Cess generally 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance. Prevailing Name - Barry.

Knockroe Wilson

-- B. S.

30

Cnoc Ruadh, red hill. J. O'D.

Knockroe Wilson

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. 1824

Knockrue

-- Barony Map

Situated in the N.W. of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Caherconlish td.; S. and W. by the ph. of Inch St. Lawrence; and E. by Graggane td. Contains 47 acres. Arable. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax. Lime is brought from Ballybrood and used for manure.

The proprietor Thomas M. Wilson, Esq. has it let to 5 tenants, one with a lease of 1 life, all at £1 10s. to £2 5s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half

Knockroe Wilson (contd.)

yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Lombardstown

-- B. S.

31

Lombard is a family name. J. O'D.

Lombardstown

-- J. O'D.

Lumbardstown

-- Tithe Compn. Book -- Revd. M. Moore

Lambertstown

-- Barony Map

In the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Kilmurry td.; E. by Ballyadam td.; S. by Ballyvorneen td.; and W. by Greenane td. Contains 199 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil partly deep, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Revd. Richard Wolfe has it let per his agent T. Dizney, Esq. to 9 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 8s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Name - Callaghan.

Moy

-- B. S.

32

Magh, a plain, a flat piece of land. O'D.

This name is sometimes made Moigh and sometimes Muff.

Moigh

-- J. O'D.

-- Tithe Compn. Book

-- Revd. M. Moore

Moeh

-- Down Survey

Moegh

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Moygh als Moyagh

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

In the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Castle-Erkin td.; E. by Curraghnaboul in Dromkeen Fh.; S. by Ballyadam td.; and W. by Ballyadam td. Contains 209 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Walter Bourke, Esq. has it let to Thomas Loyd, Esq., and he again per his agent Edward Maunsell, Esq. to 4 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £1 15s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 1s.8d per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Mewtown

-- B. S.

33

Baile Nua, new town. J. O'D.

Newtown

-- J. O'D.

-- Inhabitants

-- Barony Map

Newtown (contd.)

Situated in the S. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. and E. by Gragane td.; S. by the ph. of Inch St. Law-rence; and W. by Knockroe Wilson td. Contains 22 acres. Arable, with limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Captain Thomas M. Wilson has it let at £3 per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$, yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre.

Pust North

-- B. S.

34

Not an Irish name.

Pust North

- -- J. O'D.
- -- Inhabitants
- -- Geo. Peacocke, High Constable

In the west end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Carrigarreely td.; E. by the td. of Hundred Acres East; S. by the ph. of Inch St. Lawrence; and W. by Skahard td. Contains 162 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil deep, producing potatoes, corn, flax, and some wheat.

The proprietor Richard Maunsell, Esq. has it let to Mr. Ralph H. Cox by a lease of 3 lives and 31 years, who retains a part in his own occupation, and sublets the remainder by conacre at 12 pounds per acre (£12). Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly, paid only by R. H. Cox. Tithe 2s. per acre.

Pust South

-- B. S. -- J. O'D. 35

In the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Pust Nth; E. & S. by Caherconlish td.; and W. by the ph. of Inch St. Lawrence. Contains 21 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Captain Thomas M. Wilson has it let to Richard Nash, Esq. by a lease for ever at 7s. 2d. per acre, and he again to 3 others by leases of 3 lives at £2 2s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.8d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Shrahaan East

-- B. S.

36

Sruthán, a streamlet; or Srathan, a strath or holm. O'D.

Srahane

- -- J. O'D.
- -- Sur. & Val. Report 1824
- -- Barony Map
- -- Revd. M. Moore

Shrahaan East (contd.)

Straghane Stryghane -- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-56
-- Acts of Settlement

Stryghane Shreehane

In the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Srahane W. td; E. and S. by Highpark td.; and W. by Ludden ph. Contains 218 acres. Arable, with some limestone. Boil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

As Charity Land, it is let by the Board to Mr. Timothy O'Brien by a lease of 3 lives, and he again to 3 tenants by leases of 61 years at £2 per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½-yearly. Tithe 11d. per acre. Bog in abundance.

Shrahaan West

-- B. S.

37

For name see Shrahaan East, page 36.

In the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. and E. by Carrigparson ph.; and on the S. by Srahane East. Contains 63 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor John Doyle, Esq. has it let to Mrs. Barry at £2 10s. per acre, and she again to 1 tenant by a lease of 1 life at £3 per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Skahard

-- B. S.

38

Scáth Árd, high shadow; or Sgeach Árd, high thorn. O'D.

Skahard

-- J. O'D.

Skeard

-- Barony Map
-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824
-- Fresentments Book 1834

Situated in the W. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by High Park td.; E. by Pust Nth td.; S. by the ph. of Inch St. Lawrence; and W. by Ludden Ph. Contains 141 acres. Arable, with limmestone.

The proprietor Joseph Gabbett, Esq. has it let by a lease of 21 years to 3 tenants at £3 per acre. County Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe is included in the rent.

<u>Sandylane</u>

-- B. S.

39

Boithrin Sgeithe Gainimh, lane of the blowing sand.

Sandylane

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. M. Moore

In the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by the ph. of Abington; E. by Killinure td.; S. by Knockanea td.; and W. by Tobermalug td. Contains 171 acres, arable, without

Sandyland (contd.)

limestone. Soil light and gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor John Digby, Esq. has it let to 5 tenants by leases of 3 lives at £1 12s. per acre in farms of from 32 to 2 acres. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Name - Hickey.

Tubbermalug

-- B. S.

40

Tobar Molaga, St. Molaga's Well. J. O'D.

Tobermalug
Tubbermullagh
Tubbermolough

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824
-- Presentments Book 1834

-- Geo. Peacocke, High Constable.

In the N. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by the ph. of Abington; E. by Sandylane & Knockanea tds.; S. by Carrigarreely td.; and W. by the td. of Hundred Acres W. Contains 279 acres. Arable, with limestone. Soil light & gravelly, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Richard Maunsell, Esq. has it let to 5 tenants by leases of 1 life at £2 15s. per acre in farms of 45 to 10 acres. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre half yearly. Tithe 2s. per acre. Bog for fuel is very scarce.

Temple Michael

-- B. S.

41

Teampull Mhichil, St. Michael's Church. J. O'D.

Templemichael

-- J. O'D.

Temple Michael

-- Revd. M. Moore
-- Presentments Book

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

Templemichell

-- Down Survey -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Temple Mighill

-- Acts of Settlement

In the centre of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Knockanea td.; E. by Knockeen td.; S. by Greenane td.; and W. by Caherconlish td. Contains 280 acres. Arable, without limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn and flax.

The proprietor Benjamin Friend, Esq. has it let to 14 tenants, two with leases of 1 life, at £2 15s. per acre. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.7d. per acre ½ yearly. Tithe averages 1s.10d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is in abundance.

Woodfarm

-- B. S. -- J. O'D.

The Woodfarm

-- Barony Map

In the E. end of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Ballyart td.; E. by the ph. of Tuogh; S. by Dromkeen ph.; and W. by Castle-Erkin td. Contains 156 acres. Arable without limestone. Soil light and wet, producing corn and flax.

The proprietor Revd. Richard Wolfe has it let.by leases of 1 life per his agent Thos. Dizney, Esq. to 4 tenants at £1 10s. per acre. Tithe 1s.6d. per acre, and Co. Cess not paid. Bog used for fuel is very scarce.

Highpark

-- B. S.

43

42

Ard O gCuirt. J.O'D.

Highpark

-- J. O'D.

-- Barony Map

-- Inhabitants

--Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Revd. M. Moore

In the N.W. of the parish. Bounded on the N. by Srahane td.; E. by the td. of Hundred Acres W.; S. by Skahard td.; and W. by Anglode td. Contains 519 acres. Arable, with some limestone. Soil partly light, producing potatoes, corn, flax and some wheat.

The proprietor J. Gabbett, Esq. has it let at will to 10 tenants at £2 14s. to £2 11s. per acre in farms of 30 to 10 acres. Co. Cess 1s.2d. to 1s.8d. per acre $\frac{1}{2}$ yearly. Tithe 2s. to 1s.3d. per acre. Bog used for fuel is very scarce. Prevailing Name - Connell.

Miscellaneous Features.

King William's Road

The Hag's Road, or "Boher na Collie"

Inhabitants 44

Boher na gglogh, or The Stony Road.

Bothar na Caillighe, the Hag's road. O'D. Bothar na gCloch, The Stony Road. O'D.

King William's Road, Bohernacally, and Bohernaglogh - O'D.

Of these three roads only Bohernaglogh still remains; the others are obliterated. King William's Road, so called because the King travelled on it to Limerick, was levelled about the year 1789, and during the levelling process a great number of coins were found by the workmen. Boher na Collie took its name from an old woman who hanged herself there of old. It was levelled later that King William's Road, part as late as 1830.

Highpark House

-- Inhabitants

45

Situated in the td. of Highpark, and within 8 chains of the N.W. boundary.

This house was built between the years 1759 and 1789: it is 3 story high, with a decayed appearance. It is occupied by Mr. Michael Foley.

Lissnagrough. or the Stack Fort. -- Inhabitants

Lios na gCruach. the Fort of the Stacks. J. O'D.

Lisnagroagh

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the centre of the E. boundary of Knockanea td.

This fort is about 25 chains in diameter and 3 high. with some hawthorns growing on it. It has a green flat surface and was named as above from the supposition that it was an enclosure for corn and haystacks, and not a fort.

Boskill House

-- Inhabitants

46

See townland name.

In the N. point of the townland of Boskill.

This house, which is now thatched and coverted to a stable. was built as early as the time of King William, who lived in it for a fortnight. His army fortified it with large trenches, the last of which was only levelled about 1833. It was first built by, and for the seat of, the family of the Friends, who are still the proprietors, and have it let to the Revd. W. Power. P.P.

Caherconlish House

-- Inhabitants

47

Massy Park

-- Barony Map

In the centre of Caherconlish td. The seat of Captain J. M. Wilson. This house was built some time about the year 1789 at the expense of about £1,000. It is 3 story high, and placed on an eminence.

-- J. O'D.

Lombardstown House -- Inhabitants

See townland. J. O'D.

In the S.E. corner of Lombardstown townland.

This house was rebuilt in 1823 by the occupier, Mr. Thomas O'Brien. It is 2 story high.

Boskill Lodge

-- Inhabitants

48

See townland. The situation & description of this house are not given.

Ballyvourneen House

-- Inhabitants

50

See townland. J. O'D.

Ballyvournane Castle -- Barony Map

In the S.E. part of the townland of Ballyvorneen.

This house, the property of the Gabbetts, is now occupied by a tenant. It is 2 story high, of a decayed appearance, and was rebuilt some time ago on the site of an old castle, the seat of Clancey, one of the chieftains of old.

Brittas Castle

-- Inhabitants

. 51

See townland. J. O'D.

In the E. part of the td. of Brittas and on the bank of the River Mulkeir.

The ruins of this castle are 140 by 30 feet, the walls being in parts 10 feet high and having the appearance of a tower at each corner. It was built and inhabited, it is said, by Frederick Bourke, who was the first Lord Brittas and son-in-law to Mornane of Carrigarreely, whom he killed. It is also said that, during the Elizabethan Wars, a northern chieftain, advancing southwards, was opposed by Brittas, but forced his way successfully to "Boreen a Charrig", where he slew Lord Brittas and 21 others of the Bourkes.

Boskill Lodge

-- Inhabitants

52.

This seems to be the same as Boskill Lodge, page 48.

Near the centre of the td. of Templemichael.

This house was built by Capt. Ben. Friend at the expense of about £600. It is 2 story high.

Caherconlish Church

-- Inhabitants

53

In the W. end of thetd. of Caherconlish.

This church was rebuilt from the ruin of an house of worship about the year 1780 at the expense of about £600 from the Board of First Fruits. It is capable of containing about 400 persons There is a grave-yard attached to it.

Kilmurry Chapel

-- Inhabitants

53

In the W. end of Kilmurry td., on the S. of the road from Caherconlish to Abington.

This chapel was thrown down and removed to the S. corner of Ballyvorneen, at the parish boundary of Ballybrood, where it was rebuilt. The ruins as also a grave-yard are enclosed by a wall.

Downey's Cross

-- Inhabitants

53

In the centre of Sandylane td., on the main road from Limerick to Tipperary and a cross line from Caherconlish to Abington Park.

It is so called from a man named Downey, who lives there and who, in addition to 3 others, has a public house called the "Six Mile House" as being that distance from the City of Limerick.

Templemichael

-- Inhabitants

54

In the W. of Templemichael td. and attached to the north side of the road from Caherconlish to Abington.

The ruins of this church are in a green field, planted with fir trees. It is about 60 by 30 feet, is level with the ground, and is covered with grass. It is said to have been an old Friary. The inhabitants also say that it was once surrounded by a spacious graveyard, and this seems confirmed by the discovery of great quantities of human bones and the remains of coffins in 1819, while the field was being cultivated.

Carrigoreely Castle

-- Inhabitants

5**5**

See townland name. J. O'D.

Situated in the S.W. of Carrigarreely townland.

This castle is placed on a limestone rock, about 2 chains in diameter and 20 feet high. It retains the appearance of a strong building, and is about 60 feet high and 24 feet wide, being square. It is said that it was founded by an O'Farrell, and Carrigoreely signifies in English "O'Farrell's Rock". It was afterwards occupied by a man named Mornane.

Raheen Roe

Inhabitants

56

Raithin Ruadh, the little red fort. J. O'D.

Raheenroe

-- J. O'D.

In the W. end of Knockroe Wilson townland.

This is a circular fort composed of earth and planted with fir trees. It is placed on the E. side of a hill, from which a view of several miles may be seen.

Kyle a vohair

-- Inhabitants

Cill a' Bhóthair, church of the road. J. O'D.

Killavoher

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the N.E. corner of Skahard td. and about 3 chains south of the road between same and Highpark.

Kyle a vohair (contd.)

All that remains of this roadside church is its site in a cultivated field, with 3 hawthorn bushes growing thereon. It was used as a children's burial ground until about 1800.

Thobar Malug

-- Inhabitants

57

Tobar Molaga, St. Molaga's Well. J. O'D.

Tobermalug

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the west end of Tobermalug td. and within 5 chains of the middle of the west boundary.

This well, which is now without water, is 2 feet wide & the same deep, built round with stones. It is in a green field. Beside it is a small hillock, about 9 feet in diameter, of small stones probably collected there by pious visitors, though now overgrown with grass and overshadowed by an old hawthorn bush, which grows on the brink of the The inhabitants say that, prior to 1814, the well existed and was used as a holy well, religious ceremonies being performed at it. But in 1814 it was used for temporal purposes, such as washing clothes. Whereupon it dried up to its present state, and burst out about 10 chains further west in another townland.

<u>Kilmurry National School</u> -- Inhabitants

58

In the S.W. end of Kilmurry td. and at Kilmurry Old Chapel.

This school was established in 1832 at the expense of £30 paid by the parishoners, and was afterwards patronised by the Board of Education, which pays the Master £10 per annum, besides sundry agreements with the scholars according to their advancement. The average number of scholars is about 60, of whom & are boys and all R.Cs.

Caherconlish Village -- Inhabitants

59

Situated in the N.E. corner of Caherconlish td.

This willage, which is placed in a valley, has about 100 houses, of which more than a are cabins of poor and mean construction; 9 are 2 story high; 5 are licensed public houses; and 7 are petty groceries. It has an Established House of Worship; there is also a school for females, the average number of pupils being 18. The school was established in 1822, partly by the Kildare St. Bible Society, and partly by subscription. The Mistress is paid in like manner -£5 from the Bible Society and a like sum from the Incumbent and other subscribers. About half the present number is Protestant. The male school is vacant. The village has also a Post Office, a Police Barracks, and quarterly fairs.

Thobar na Mearogue

-- Inhabitants

60

Tobar Mhearog, well of pebbles. J. O'D.

Tobermearoge

-- J. O'D.

The Pebbly Well (Eng.) -- J. O'D.

Situated about 1 chain south of the N. boundary of Tobermalug townland.

This well is about 5 feet in diameter, and is placed in a green field. It has a small rivulet of pure spring water running from it, and falling into the River Groody.

Foul Eyone

-- Inhabitants

Poll Eidhin, hole of the ivy. J. O'D.

Pouleyon

-- J. O'D.

See td. of Eyone in Abington Ph.

Situated in the centre of the td. of Eyone, and to the south of the road leading through the same townland.

This is a deep hole in the centre of a high limestone hill. The cavern is about 20 feet in diameter, is very deep, and round its opening is a thick growth of ivy, etc.

<u>Killanure</u>

-- Inhabitants

61

Cill an Iubhair, the cill or burial-ground of the yew.

Situated near the centre of the W. boundary of Killinure townland.

This is a small cultivated hill, on which great quantities of human bones were found during its cultivation. According to the inhabitants, this hill and the surrounding country were covered with trees, particularly yews, away back in Elizabethan times. In this forest the then Lord Brittas won a notable victory over his enemies by having many of the trees so cut that at a given signal they were collapsed upon his opponents, who were then massacred at leisure. The dead were buried on the hill, which thenceforward was called Cill an Tubhair, the burial-ground of the yew.

Eyone House

-- Inhabitants

- 62

See Eyone td., in Abington parish.

Situated near the centre of the td. of Eyone.

This house was built in 1838 at the expense of about £500. It is 2 story high and the seat of Mr. Richard Laffan.

Knockeen Hill

-- Inhabitants

Situated in the N. end of Enockeen townland.

This hill, the north side of which is about 150 feet high and about one-eight of a mile long, is covered with furze, etc., as a covert for game. In it also is a cavern of such length that its end has not been discovered. Its entrance is about 5 feet in diameter, widening with apartments interiorly.

Park a Pfrinsa

-- Inhabitants

63

Páirc a' Phrionsa, park of the prince. J. O'D.

Parkaphrince

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the north part of Boskill townland and to the west of Boskill House.

This field is green and pastured, and contains about 2½ acres. It got its name from being attached to the house in which King William lived for a while during his campaign against the City of Limerick.

Park a bhoire

-- Inhabitants

Páirc an Óir, field of the gold.

Parkanore

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the north part of Boskill townland and to the E. of Boskill House. This field is cultivated.

This, the Golden Field, got its name from the belief that there is gold hidden in it. In 1831, two parties of men set out to find the gold, without either partybeing aware of the other's intention or approach. They met and a fierce encounter ensued, in which many wounds were inflicted, but no gold obtained.

End of the Parish of Caherconlish

62